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LLUSTRATED HISTORY

OF THE .

3t.%2's Falls 3Hi

Showing the early efforts which were made to secure Its

constructlor^, its subsequent enlargement and enormous

increase in traffic, and the building of a second new

lock by the U, S. Government,

7

MHH

i^^

37K'^~ y (C
TriB KAKLV HISTORY OF THE CANAL IS TAKEN FROM MR. W I LLIAM^CH AN DLER'S REPORT TO GOV-

ERNOR CHARLES M. CROSV/ELL. OF MICHIGAN. MADE IN 1877. WHILE MR. CHANDLER WAS

COLLECTOR OF THE CANAL. THE NOTES APPERTAININO TO THE GOVERNMENT WORK HERE

HAVE BEEN COMPIL^ FROM THE OFFICIAL RSCORDS.EN COMPILm>

PUBLISHED BY CHAPHAN & KIBBY
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upon the military reservation. The post commander, having been

previouBly instructed upon thin point, ordered the contractorK to

desist ; but tliey refused to comply, and continued work until the

ijth of May, when Lieut. Rood, at the head of his command,
forcibly ejected them from the ground. Tliis act, of course, neces-

sitated the abandonment of the work. There was actually

expended upon the work, as reported by Commissioner Robinson :

By John Almy, engineer f 1,153 27

Wages and traveling expenses 734 39

Total $1,876 56

By a joint resolution, approved March 27, 1840, the Legislature of

Micliigan protested against tliis high-handed act of tlie United

States, and demanded reparation for expenses and loss to the

State, in thus preventing an attempt to improve the navigation of

waters leading to a territory so recently forced upon her and
brought within her jurisdiction. States' right? not prevailing at

that tinu-, this act of the Legislature provt-J of no avail.

But the attempt to secure the construction of the canal was not

allowed to rest here. The same Legisliiture adopted a memorial
to Congress, which was approved March 30th, 1840, in which the

importance of the speedy construction of the canal was fully set

forth, on account of the great wealth of the country in copper, iron,

fisheries, furs, pine, timber, and the value of the land for agricul-

tural purposes. The memorial closed by asking money or lards

to aid in its construction. Hon. Samilel Ashman, member of ihe

Legi. 'iture from Ciippewa county, took a deep and active interest

in the matter, and acted as chairman of the select committee
which prepared the memorial above referred to. Hon. John Nor-

vell. Senator from Michigan, responded to the request of the Legis-

lature, and immediately on receipt of the memorial, presented it to

Jl

Congress, and Introduced a bill providing (or a grant of 100,000
acres of land to aid in the construction of the canal. The bill was
defeated. Among those who opjKMed it was Henry Clay, who, in a
speech against It, referred to it aa "a work beyond the remotest
settlement in the United States, if not in the moon." What would
Henry Clay aay today if he could see the millions of dollars in

mining products, in wheat, lumber and fish, which annually pass
over Lake Superior, and through the canal at the Sault^
Thus the matter rested until the meeting of the Legislature in

1843. Onjanuar. 34 a joint resolution passed that body, asking
Congress for an appropriation for the construction of the canal.
Copies of this action were str.; to the Legislatures of New York,
Pennsylvania, Ohio, Illinois and Wisconsin, and asking their

cooperatijii in the enterprise. Similar resolutions were passed
January 37, 1844, and March 9, 1848, which shows that although
their efforts had not met with success, the friends of the enterprise,

even alter ten years of continuous labor, were not yet discouraged.

In 1849, Hon. Jolui Ingersull, Representative In the Legislature

from Chippewa County, and Hon. Jonathan P. Kin^, from Mack,
inaw, took hold of the matter again, and secured tiie passage of a

joint resolution by the Legislature asking Congress to appropriate

)55oo,ooo in money for the construction of the canal. Still Congress
took no favorable action. Hon. John Bacon, of Chippewa County,

and Hon. E.J. Roberts, of Houghton County, were members of the

Legislature of 185,, and'working together secured the passage o'f a

similar joint resolution, which was approved March 30, calling upon
the General Government for $500,000 for the canal. This was sent

to the Legis'a'ure of all ihe States interested, and their coopera-

tion solicited.

During these years of controversy the immense wealth of the

northern peninsula was becoming known. The copper interest

had developed into a magnitude before unheard of. The iron ore
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depotitB had become known m almoRt inexhaustible. Instead of

havhiK a "anal to hasten and assist in the development of the

country, as its friends in the beKinning had hoped, the rapid

growth of the resources of the country was beginning to attract the

attention of the people to the absolute necessity of a ship ranal to

facilitate and cheapen transportation. The plank and tram road

truiiHfers at the Sault could no longer fill the demands of trade.

The few faithftil ones who had worked so long, though unavailingly,

in behalf of tin enterprise, were alone no longer. Large numbers
were now interested, and everywhere took hold of the matter with

an earnestness that had never before been manifested, and urged

upon Congress the great importance of a canal in a national as well

as a commercial point of view. All this looked encouraging for the

success of tne enterprise in the near future. Hon. John Hurt, who
had from the first taken a deep interest in the enterprise, about

this time put his shoulder to the wheel. Through his efforts others

were interested, and induced to contribute their time and money
to aid the great work. Capt. Eber B. Ward, then most prominently

known as a steamboat king, and Sheldon McKiiight, another

steamboat man, about this time became especially active. Among
others who deserve mention in this connection were Abner Sher-

man, Simon Mendelbaum, Wm. L. Stephens, Samuel VV. Hill,

Heaman B. Ely, Pcler White, and J. Vernon Brown, who was editor

of the Lake Superior Journal, putilished at the Sault. The peo-

ple generally at the Sault were rather inditfereiit tlian otherwise,

but there were exceptions, among whom were Samuel Ashman,

P. B. Barbeau, S. R. Wood nnd several others.

Preparations were made to carry the matter ""efore Congress in a

manner never done before. To this end a self-constituted com-

mittee (lobby it might be called in these days), consisting of Hon.

John Burt, Capt. E. B. Ward, Sheldon McKnight, Abner Sherman,

Simon Mendelbaum, D. S. Cash, Wm. Willard, E. C. Roberts,

i

Ji

Wm. A. Pratt and J, Vernon Brown, spent most of the winter of

1S51 and 1S53 in Washington, for the purpose of Inlluenclng legisla-

tion favorable to the canal. The stock In trade of these gentlemen

consisted of specimens of copper and Iron ore, and their Individual

influence with members of Congress. Public sentiment was
influenced to as great an extent as possible by Mr. Brown by

articles in his paper, copies of which were sent to all the members
of Coi gress, and to ilie different Legislatures whose aid it was
desirable to secure. It was made to appear that the work was one

of great national importance, besides lis commercial value. Dur-

ing this memorable conleBt Mr. Hurt's room was headquarters for

this enterprise. Here Mr. Brown's articles were written ; here

were niemorinls prepared, neiit to the State Legislatures intended

to be passed by them, and then Kent to their meml)ers of Congress.

The copper and iron specimens had a powerful eflect with the

committee which had the matter in charge The result of all this

influence was the introduction of two bills in Ci iigress upon the

subject—one providing for {1500,0(10 in money, and the other (or

500,000 acres of land, for the construction of the canal. The
opposition of the Southern members of Congress, wiio then con-

trolled affiiirs, to government appropriations for internal improve-

ments, rendered the pass ge of the money bill impossible. All

eflbrts were then turned to the land bill. Enough of them were

found, however, who would vote governttient land to the State to

aid in the construction of the canal to \^hb the bill, which had in

the meantime been raised to 750,000 acres. Tlii.sbill was approved

by the President August a6, 1852. Much valuable aid in carrying

this measure through Congress was rendered by Gen. Cass, Gov.

Felch and James L. Conger.

Thus it was only after fifteen years' almost constant labor that the

project was considered of enough importance to merit government

aid. But even then the promot'.i A the enterprise felt far from



ButUfied. They felt no aiiiiirance Ihat the work could be done with

the land within any reaionable time Hon. Truman Smith of

Connecticut openly declared that the canal cuuld not be con-

structed in Wn yearn, if ever, with this grant. Mr. Brown returned

to the Sault, and piibiiahrd n very diHcournKlng article regardinK

the pro8|>ectH. Mr. Hurt was about the only person who had faith.

He replied warmly to Mr. Hniwn's article, and predicted the com-
pletion of the canni within two years,

Inini«<1ialely on the pasxnKe of the act by Congress making the

appropriation of land, (iovcriKir McClelland, In order to hasten the.

work of ('(iiiHtriu'tlon, addreHsed a letter to tlie Secretary of War,

requeHtiuK him to make iin ImniediHte survey of tlie proposed canal.

For the want of a specific appropriation for this purpose the retp st

was not complied with. The (Governor then secured the services uf

Capt. Canfield, United States Topographical Kngineer, to make the

survey. It was proceeded with at once, that the Governor might

lay the matter tjefore the Legislature which convened the coming

winter. If this was not done the matter would have to lay over two
years, or a special session of the Legislature be called. The success

of the enterprise was still upon uncertain ground. To secure

proper legislation and prompt action, Mr. Burt again set to work,

and with the aid of friends, secured the nomination of his father,

Mr. W. A. Burt, as a candidate for the Legislature from Macomb
county. So great was the ctmfidence of the people in this gentle-

man that no opposing candidate was put in the held. A short time

before the election, Hon. Henman B. Ely proceeded to the Sau t,

and by his energy and force of character secured the nomination to

the Legislature from Chippewa County (Marquette County being at

that time attached to Chippewa), and remained on the ground and
secured his own election. His election, however, was contested,

but he was admitted to hia seat. These gentlemen were considered

champions of the canal.

I

Jl

The survey was completed before the meeting of the Legislatun*,

and Gov. McClelland IncortHirated it into his nussage to that body,

The plan for the canal and lotks submitted was subslantially the

same as provided for by the act of C'ongress appropriating the land,

except that, at the urgent request of Lake Supeiior men, the locks

were made 300 instead of 350 feet in length. Hon. W. A. Burt was
made chairman of the legislative committee to which the canal

matters were referred. At one time during the session of this

Legislature it seemed as though the whole canal project would fail,

not because of a lack of friends, but on account of the grf-at diver-

sity of plans and schemes which were brought forward, and which

were earnestly championed by their several projectors. However,
by the enetgy and general good tactics of the gentlemen named
above, an act was passed and approved by the Governor February

5i 1853, and one supplementary thereto, approved February i2lh,

iH<i3, by which the Governor was authorized to appoint commis-

sioners to contract for the construction of the canal unon the basis

of the plans presented. In pursuance of the provisions of this act

the Governor ap|M>inted Chauncey Joslyn, Henry Ledyard, John P.

Barry, Shubael Conant ard Alfred Williamson as Commissioners,

Thus successfully ended sixteen years of labor to secure the con-

struction of St, Mary's Falls Ship Canal. Nothing more was nec-

essary but to secure its construction for the compensation the State

had to offer. The Commissioners entered immediately upon the

discharge of their duties, and on April 5, 1853, entered into a

contract with Joseph Fairbanks, J. W. Brooks, Erastus Corning,

August Belmont, H. Dwight, Jr , and Thomas Dyer as principals,

and Franklin Moore, Geo. F. Porter, John Owen, James F. Joy
and Henry P. Baldwin as sureties, for the construction of the canal.

The contractors agreed to construct it and defray all expenses

connected with the work, for the land appropriated by Congress,

750,000 acres. They also agreed to complete the canal within two



years. In making the contract the ComniliilonerB made lome
very Important changea in the plana, which Increased the capacity

or the locks very materially. The contract as entered Into pro-

vided for the conslructiun of two consecutive locks 350 fe«.t long,

70 feet wide, and la feet depth of water; this, however, was after-

wards increased to 13 feet. The canal was to be 100 feet .in width.

The estimated cost was tfS7,739.

Under the act of the Legislature of the State of New York,

approved April 13, 1853, the St. Mary's Falls Ship Canal Company
was organised. The officers of the company were Erastus Corn-

ing, president
;
James W. Brooks, vice president

; J. V. L. Hryor,

Joseph Fairbanks, John M. Forbes, John F. Seymour and James
F. Joy. On the ajth of AuKUst, 1853, the original contract was
formally assigned to this company.

On the 4th ofJune, 1853, ground was broken by Mr. Chas. T. Har-

vey, by the use of a spade in his own hands, and the great work
was commenced which would open up the immense wealth of the

Upper Peninsula to the commerce of the world. The work was
prosecuted with vigor under the personal supervision of Mr. Chas,

T. Harvey, who was superintendent of construction.

On the aiftt of May, 1855, a certificate of the completion of ine

work was signed by Kinsley S. Bingham, Governor, Shubael

Conant, Chauncey Joslin, Henry Ledyard and Alfred Williams,

and filed with the Commissioner of the State Land Office May 34,

1855. A certificate to the same effect was also made and signed by

John T. Clark, engineer. May 31, and filed on May 34. The lands

had been approved to the State by the General Government, and
on 'the asth of May, 1855, they were patented by the State to the

St. Mary's Falls Ship Canal ''ompany. The actual cost of the

canal was f9()9,8o3.46.

The near completion of the canal rendered some action necessary

by the Legislature of 1855 to provide for its management. An act

Jl

was approved February la, 1855, by which (he Governor was
authorised to appoint a superintendent, who rhoutd have local

charge of the canal. The same act also provKled that the Governor,

Auditor (ieneral and State Treasurer should constitute a Board of

Control of the canal, and should have general charge of the cnnal

and Its workings. On the lath of February, 1855, the same day

the act was passed, the Governor vrry fittingly appointed John

Burt, Esq , ns superintendent, his term of office commencing on

the 1st of April following.

On the 19th of April, 185J, wate.' was first let into the canal. On
the i><ih of June following, Mr. Burt had the plensure of seeing the

culmination of the great work, to secure which he had for so many
years been one of the chief le.iders. On tlint day he had the honor,

of parsing the first beat through the locks,— llie stcAnier Illinois

Capt. Jack Wilson, commander. The great lakes were connected

and a new era In the commerce of Lake Superior Inaugurated.

The delay In passing boats from the time of the completion of the

canal until the time above named, was caused by the discovery of

a weakness In the embankment on the north side of tin canal,

which required some additional work. In his repor' of November

30, 1856, the Superintendent recommended the strengthening ui'

this embankment by the construction of a wall upon the outside of

It and widening it, extending the north pier at the upper enJ, and
removing obstructions at the tower end. For the money necessary

to do this he recommended that an application be made to Con>

gi'ess. In the same report he also recommended the free passage

of tugs, legislation to enforce reports from captains of vessels as to

r^rgoes, and that reports of Superintendent be made to the

;rnor, etc. Governor Bingham In his message called the atten-

. . , f the Legislature to this report, and legislation was made
accordingly. Congress was memorialized for aid to make the

needed improvements, but without avail. In consideration of this

nojurmmnumumm
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failure, by request of Governor Bing;liam, the Superintendent he

following season made a special report upon the condition of the

canal, showing its urgent needs. On December 12, 1857, the

Governor called an extra session of the Legislature to take this

matter, and some others requiring legislative action, into consider-

ation. In his message to the Legislature on January 12, 1858, he

laid the matter before thai body. During the season just passed

breaks of an alarming character had occurred in the north bank.

Acting upon this report the Legislature passed a joint resolution,

which the Governor approved February i, 1858, requesting our

members of Congress to obtain, if possible, an appropriation of
$50,000 for this purpose ; all, however, to no effect.

In 1858, Mr. K. Calkins, who was then Superintendent, again

called attention to the necessity of these improvements. All efforts

to secure aid from Congress having failed, the Legislature of 1859,

realizing the importance of the work, passed an act, which was
approved February 14, 1859, which authorized the Governor and
State to make a loan of $100,000 by issuing' the bonds of the canal.

The principal and interest were guaranteed by the State, but they

were to be paid from the canal fund.

Under this law the loan was negotiated and the amount, Jioo,ooo,

passed, it was supposed into the hands of the Slate Treasurer, John
McKinney, but only one-half of it ever came to light, and Mr.

McKinney had to suffer incarnation in the State Prison in expiation

of somebody's crime. He remained in prison until near his end

when he was pardoned out to die, but he never told what became
of the money. However the best that could be done must be with

the $50,000 reniai.iing. On the 7th of June, 1859, the Board of Con-

trol entered into contract with Silas M. Holmes of Detroit, and
Nelson W. Clark of Oakland County, to make the necessary

repairs, plans and specifications for which had been made and
were attached to the contract. This contract was filed with the

a
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Secretary of State July 6, 1859. The work ^f strengthening the

canal bank was entered upon and completed that year, while the

rest of the work contracted for was completed the following year.

From that time until the present the history of the canal has only

been similar to any other well regulated institution. The benefits

which have accrued to the State through its influence are beyond

calculation. The business has increased year by year, until now
the amount of traffic which annually passes through it is immense.

The expenses of operation and repairs have been maintained ftt a

cost not beyond the revenue of the canal arising from tolls. The
interest on the bonds has been paid, and the bonds paid and pro-

vided for. Still the great increase in business has permitted the

reduction of tolls from 6\4 cents per registered ton to 3 cents, the

law providing that the tolls should only create a sufficient revenue

for these purposes.

During the year 1876, some irregularities were discovered in the

accounts at the canal office, and soon afterwards the clerk, Mr. S.

B, W. Coval, left suddenly, and it is charged that he took upwards

of $1,000 canal money with him. He was afterwards arrested,

tried during the summer of 1878, befor<! the Circuit Court of Chip-

pewa County and acquitted. This IfcU to an investigation of the

canal affairs by the Legislature of 1877, and at the suggestion of

Governor Croswell, a revision of the laws governing the canal.

The local management, which had up to this time rested entirely

with a Superintendent, was by this revision vested in a Superin-

tendent and a Collector of Tolls, the canal proper being left under

the supervision of the Superintendent, while the entire financial

affairs of the canal were placed under the charge of the Collector.

Governor Croswell appointed William Chandler of Cheboygan, to

the newly created office, the appointment dating May ai, 1877.

Mr. Chandler assumed the duties of the position May 27.

Although the canal as constructed was nearly four times as large

sassz V.jH.'Lti^liaM'lwwi^ow 4. .



as was contemplated by its first projectors in 1837, so rapidly under
its influence did the Northern Peninsula, and the great north and
west tributary to Lake Superior and this great channel of com-
merce, develop and expand, that hardly had a dozen years elapsed

before it became apparent that some action must soon be taken

looking to an increase in the capacity of the canal and locks. Not

only had the commerce passing the canal increased at an astonish-

ing rapidity, but the size of the vessels had also correspondingly

increased. Vessels could not pass the locks carrying anywhere
near their capacity. The mming interests of the Northern Penin-

sula, which had been given a stimulus by the completion of the

canal, had grown to such vast proportions, that they had absorbed

money and business ability from almost every section of the

country. Therefore nearly all parts of the country had almost a

personal interest in this great work. Superintendent George VV.

Brown, in his report for 1864, spoke of the necessity of enlarging

the capacity of the locks, and recommended that another set of

locks be constructed, giving as reasons that it would cost very little

more and would be much better. In 1867, Mr. Guy H. Carleton,

then Superintendent of the canal, called attention to necessit> of

deepening and enlarging the canal and locks, giving the reH-ons

therefor. Again, in his report for 1868 the subject was mentioned,

and the suggestion made that the General Government be applieci

to for the means necessary. The time for definite action seemed to

have arrived during the winter of 1868-9. ^b when the canal project

was first inaugurated, Hon. John Burt was found among the leaders of

this enterprise. He publicly advocated the deepening of the locks

during the wintf months, that navigation might not be obstructed.

He perfected plans for the work and submitted them to Governor

Crapo, the retiring, and Governor Baldwin, the incoming, governor.

This resulted in the attention of the Legislature being called to the

necessity of the work, and the passage by that body, February 16,

n

1869, of a joint resolution urging the importance of the work upon

Congress. Mr. Burt personally laid the matter before the members
of Congress. He soon ascertained the prevalent opinion among
them was that nothing could be done, in consequence of the canal

being under State control. Mr. Burt then returned to Detroit and

laid the situation of affairs before the Board of Trade of that city.

As a means of securing the sought for end, that body took action in

favor of the transfer of the canal to the United States. This was
followed by petitions and memorials from the principal lake cities,

requesting for like reasons the proposed transfer. Acting upon the

showing thus presented, the Legislature passed a joint resolution,

March 27, 1869, authorizing a transfer of the canal to the United

States. The work of placing this enterprise before Congress was
not permitted to flag. All tne States interested sent memorials to

Congress in behalf of the project. The business and resources of the

great Lake Superior district were placed before Congress in a

statistical form. This was prepared chiefly by Mr. H. A. Burt,

of Marquette, and had a large influence in shaping future legisla-

tion. The initiative in Congress of this movement was made by

Hon. O. D. Conger, March 14, 1870, by the introduction of a reso-

lution requesting the Secretary of War to have General Cram, then

in charge of the river and harbor improvements of the great lakes,

make a report on the importance of this work, u|>on a basis of 14

feet draft of water ; the expense to be defrayed from appropriations

already made for surveys of rivers and harbors. This resolution was

passed Apiil 4. Before General Cram had time to comply with the

law he was superseded b;- General O. M. Poe, upon whom the

work devolved. However, beibre this report was made, the enter-

ing wedge was secured by an act of Congress, approved July 11,

1870, appropriating $150,000 for the improvement of St. Mary's

Falls Ship Canhl, and this without accepting the proposition of

the State to trai:sfer the canal to the General Government.
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September 20, 1870, General Foe ".laving completed liis

examination, mad(! a report to the Secretary of War,

in which he not only sustained all the claims which had

been made regarding the importance of the proposed improve-

ment, but went even further, and claimed that the demands of

commerce would warrant the construction of a new lock or set of

locks, as might be decided upon. He also stated that $140,000 out

of $150,000 appropriated, could be immediately expended. Gen-

eral Poe proceeded at once to prepare plans for two locks. After

much consultation the plans were finally changed, and one for a

single lock substituted. It is stated that Mr. Burt was first to .

advocate the single lift, and that it v,ras largely through his influence

that the present plan was adopted. From the preliminary survey

to the completion, the local charge of the work was in the hands of

Mr. Alfred Noble, assistant engineer, to whom much credit is due

for the admirable manner in which the work was done. The gen-

eral plans of the work were completed during the administration of

General Poe. General Weitzel succeeded General Poe May 1, 1873.

General Weitzel was then at the head of the work, and took a deep

andpermanant interest in the enterprise, andfr. 11 the first, showed

his determination to make this the greatest and most complete

engineering enterprise of the age. These efforts were ably sec-

onded by Mr. Noble.

The first contract upon ^^jpiprovement was let October aoth.

1870, to Messrs. Barker, Williams & Bangs, and work first com-

menced soon after that date. Eight subsequent contracts were let

for different portions of the work, to the following contractors

:

Barker & Williams, Boyle & Roach, C. C. Barker & Son, Henry

Van Vleck and C. S. Barker. The first stone in the walls of the

new locks was laid July 25, 1876, with appropriate ceremonies,

consisting of an address b;- General Weitzel, oration by H. P.

Davock, and remarks by Hon. Geo. W. Brown and Hon. H. W.

Seymour. The president of the dsy was Peter B. Barbeau, with

numerous vice-presidents.

The United States Government began its improvement of the

canal in 1870. In consequence of legislation by Congress in the

river and harbor act of June 14, 1880, and the act passed by the

Legislature of Michigan, approved March 3, 1881, the canal was

actually transferred to the United States Government on June 9,

1881. The lock of 1870 was completed and opened to navigation

September i, 188 1. The first boat locked through was the Steamer

City of Cleveland (now the City of Alpena), of the Detroit & Cleve

land Steam Navigation Company's line.

The total amount appropr'ated for the work, up to the time of

completion of the lock now in operation, at different times, was

$2,405,000. The total cost of the canal improvement and lock was

$2,150,000, the balance of the appropriation being used in the St.

Mary's river.

Th .- length of the canal is 7,000 feet. Its wi^th is variable. The

least width is 108 feet, at the point opposite the movable dam.

Depth of water, when Lake Superior is at its average height, 16

feet.

The chamber of the present lock is 515 feet long, 80 feet wide

narrowed to 60 feet at the gates; the depth is 39K feet. Its

capacity is 1,500,000 cubic feet. The lift of the lock is «8 feet, the

depth of water on the miter-sills, when the water of the great lakes

is at its average depth, is 17 feel. A guard-gate is placed at each

end of the chamber, making the length of the walls 717 feet.

The walls for 14 feet from each end are 13 feet wide from top to

botiom ; then for 121}^ feet ai the west end and 133^^ feet at the

east end they are 25 feet wide from top to bottom. Between the

wide walls the width is i8 feet for 10 feet up from the foundation,

then it narrows in 2 feet tor 4 offsets 5 feet apart, vertically, until
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Seymour. The president of the day was Peter B. Barbeau, with

numerous vice-presidents.

The United States Government began its improvement of the

canal in 1870. In consequence of legislation by Congress in the

river and harbor act of June 14, 1880, and the act passed by the

Legislature of Michigan, approved March 3, 1881, the canal was
actually transferred to the United States Government on June 9,

1881. The lock of 1870 was completed and opened to navigation

September i, 1881, The first boat locked through was the Steamer

City of Cleveland (now the City of Alpena), of the Detroit & Cleve-

land Steam Navigation Company's line.

The total amoun; appropriated for the work, up to the time of

completion of the lock now in operation, at different times, was

$2,405,000. The total cost of the canal improvement and lock was

$2,150,000, the balance of the appropriation being used in the St.

Mary's river.

The length of the canal is 7,000 feet. Its width is variable. The
lei.st width is 108 feet, at the point opposite the movable dam.
Depth of water, when Lake Superior is at its average height, 16

feet.

The chamber of the |>resent lock is 515 feet long, 80 feet wide

narrowed to 60 feet at the gates ; the depth is 39^ feet. Its

capacity is 1,500,000 cubic feet. The lif^ of the lock is 18 feet, the

depth of water on the miter-sills, when the water of the great lakes

is at its average depth, is 17 feet. A guard-gate is placed at each

end of the chamber, making the length of the v;alls 717 feet.

The walls for 14 feet from each end are 13 feet wide from top to

bottom ; then for 121K feet at the west end and 133K feet at the

east end they are 25 feet wide from top to bottom. Between the

wide walls the width is 18 feet for 10 feet up from the foundation,

then it narrows in 2 feet for 4 offsets 5 feet apart, vertically, until
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a No record kept until 1864.

b No record kept until 1879.
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the wall is lo feet wide, at which width it is carried up to within 6
inches of the top of the coping. The coping is five feet wide.

m'^k! r"'!.' T.
**' "'"*"»°"«- The cut stone was obtained from

^
Marblehead Ohio, and Kelly's Island; the backing from Drum-

-
mond s Island, Sainte Mary's river. The facing stones are laid in

,

regular courses with a bond of I'A feet. There are ao courses,^ach 3 feet thick, excepting the coping, which is I'A feet thick.

XThere are about 34.207 cubic yards of masonry, in the constmc-

every
tion of which about 35,000 barrels of cement were used,
barrel being tested.

The water is let into the locks from culverts under the floor
These culverts extend from the upper to the lower end of the lock
The time consumed in filling or emptying the lock is about seven
minutes.

The an..exed tabular statement shows the business of the canal
each year since its opening in 1855 to and including the traffic of
iSqa, with the date of the opening and closing of navigation

:
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THE LOCK OF 1887.

1

HAY LAKE CHANNEL.

fHK project of obtaining n navigable cliaiinet of i6 feet depth

between Lalces Superior and Huron liad barely been com-

pleted when the demands of commerce bo enormously

increased that the work of obtaining a depth of ao feet throudh-

out was undertaken, and work began upon the construction of the

cofTer-dam, which incloses the site of the new lock, May 4, 1H8;.

The conrer-dam is 1,500 feet long and 300 feet wide, and the esti-

mated cost was |i95.393.

This lock is being constructed upon the site of the old state locks,

to have a length of 800 feet between gates, a width of 100 feet

throughout, a depth of 21 feel on the miter sills, and a single lift,

approximating 18 feet. The canal is now being deepened to cor-

respond. The estimated cost of this enlargement of the canal sys-

tem is 14,738,865,

March i, 1889, Collins & Farwell of Detroit, were awarded the

contract for excavating the lock pit and I ogan their work in April,

1889.

February 9. 1891, Hughes Bros. & Bangs of Syracuse, N. Y.,

were awarded the contract for the masonry construction and began

work in May, 1891.

The first stone was laid without ceremony September 2, 1891. It

is expected that this lock—the largest in the world—will be com-

pleted and ready to opeiate in 1894.

From the preliminary survey to the present time the local charge

of this work has beer in the hands of Col. E. S. Wheeler, assistant

engineer and general superintendent of St. Mary's Falls canal, to

whom much credit is due for the admirable manner in which the

work has been done and the excellent progress made.

A

tEFORE improvements were commenced, the channel through

;»1 Hay Lake was shallow in depth at Sugar Island Rapids

and at the Middle Neebish; at these two places a maximum

draught of but eight or nine feet could be carried if a very irregu-

lar course was taken, and practically, vessels drawing more than

six feet of water would not attempt the passage. In addition to the

places above mentioned, there were some shoals in Hay Lake

requiring removal to make the channel available for the vessels

navigating the St. Mary's river. The original estimate for this

improvement was based upon a project for a channel 300 feet wide

and 17 feet deep, leaving the present navigable channel of St.

Mary's river at Sugar Island Rapids (about two and a half mi!es

below the canal), through these into Hay Lake and then, by way

of the Middle Neebish, rejoining the present navigable channel at

the foot of Sugar Island, thus saving a distance of eleven miles

and obtaining a route which can be so marked by lights as to be

navigable at night—a condition impracticable with the present

channel except by the use of many lights. The estimated cost of

this project was 1^2, 127, 292. The project was subsequently modified

to increase the depth to 20 feet, the estimated cost being $2,659,115.

subject to change, however, in case unexpected difficulties are

developed during the progress of the work.

This work, as well as the building of the new lock at the canal, is

in charge of Gen. O. M. Poe of the United States engineers, while

Col. E. S. Wheeler, assistant United States engineer and general

superintendent of the canal tad river work, has the personal super-

vision.

The work upon this channel is well advanced and progressing

nicely.
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